(&) 1AEA

International Atomic Energy Agency

General Conference

GC(48)/COM.5/0R.1

Issued: October 2004

General Distribution

Original: English

Forty-Eighth (2004) Regular Session

Committee of the Whole

Record of the First Meeting

Held at the Austria Center Vienna on Tuesday, 21 September 2004, at 10.40 a.m.

Contents

Item of the
agenda’

9

10
11
12

15
16

Chairman: Mr. OTHMAN (Syrian Arab Republic)

Election of Vice-Chairmen and organization of work

The Agency’s accounts for 2003

The Agency’s budget for 2004 — supplementary appropriation
The Agency’s budget for 2005

Scale of assessment of members’ contributions towards the Regular
Budget

Strengthening of the Agency’s technical cooperation activities

Strengthening the Agency’s activities related to nuclear science,
technology and applications

Paragraphs

1-4

The composition of delegations attending the session is given in document GC(48)/INF/16/Rev.1.

[*]  GC(48)/25.

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages, in a memorandum
and/or incorporated in a copy of the record. They should be sent to the Secretariat of the Policy-Making Organs, International
Atomic Energy Agency, Wagramerstrasse 5, P.O. Box 100, A-1400 Vienna, Austria; fax +43 1 2600 29108; e-mail
secpmo@iaea.org; or from GovAtom via the Feedback link. Corrections should be submitted within three weeks of the
receipt of the record.


Verwendete Distiller 5.0.x Joboptions
Dieser Report wurde automatisch mit Hilfe der Adobe Acrobat Distiller Erweiterung "Distiller Secrets v1.0.5" der IMPRESSED GmbH erstellt.
Sie koennen diese Startup-Datei für die Distiller Versionen 4.0.5 und 5.0.x kostenlos unter http://www.impressed.de herunterladen.

ALLGEMEIN ----------------------------------------
Dateioptionen:
     Kompatibilität: PDF 1.4
     Für schnelle Web-Anzeige optimieren: Nein
     Piktogramme einbetten: Nein
     Seiten automatisch drehen: Nein
     Seiten von: 1
     Seiten bis: Alle Seiten
     Bund: Links
     Auflösung: [ 600 600 ] dpi
     Papierformat: [ 595 842 ] Punkt

KOMPRIMIERUNG ----------------------------------------
Farbbilder:
     Downsampling: Ja
     Berechnungsmethode: Bikubische Neuberechnung
     Downsample-Auflösung: 200 dpi
     Downsampling für Bilder über: 300 dpi
     Komprimieren: Ja
     Automatische Bestimmung der Komprimierungsart: Ja
     JPEG-Qualität: Hoch
     Bitanzahl pro Pixel: Wie Original Bit
Graustufenbilder:
     Downsampling: Ja
     Berechnungsmethode: Bikubische Neuberechnung
     Downsample-Auflösung: 200 dpi
     Downsampling für Bilder über: 300 dpi
     Komprimieren: Ja
     Automatische Bestimmung der Komprimierungsart: Ja
     JPEG-Qualität: Hoch
     Bitanzahl pro Pixel: Wie Original Bit
Schwarzweiß-Bilder:
     Downsampling: Nein
     Komprimieren: Ja
     Komprimierungsart: CCITT
     CCITT-Gruppe: 4
     Graustufen glätten: Nein

     Text und Vektorgrafiken komprimieren: Ja

SCHRIFTEN ----------------------------------------
     Alle Schriften einbetten: Ja
     Untergruppen aller eingebetteten Schriften: Nein
     Wenn Einbetten fehlschlägt: Abbrechen
Einbetten:
     Immer einbetten: [ ]
     Nie einbetten: [ ]

FARBE(N) ----------------------------------------
Farbmanagement:
     Farbumrechnungsmethode: Farbe nicht ändern
     Methode: Standard
Geräteabhängige Daten:
     Einstellungen für Überdrucken beibehalten: Ja
     Unterfarbreduktion und Schwarzaufbau beibehalten: Ja
     Transferfunktionen: Anwenden
     Rastereinstellungen beibehalten: Nein

ERWEITERT ----------------------------------------
Optionen:
     Prolog/Epilog verwenden: Nein
     PostScript-Datei darf Einstellungen überschreiben: Ja
     Level 2 copypage-Semantik beibehalten: Ja
     Portable Job Ticket in PDF-Datei speichern: Ja
     Illustrator-Überdruckmodus: Ja
     Farbverläufe zu weichen Nuancen konvertieren: Ja
     ASCII-Format: Nein
Document Structuring Conventions (DSC):
     DSC-Kommentare verarbeiten: Ja
     DSC-Warnungen protokollieren: Nein
     Für EPS-Dateien Seitengröße ändern und Grafiken zentrieren: Ja
     EPS-Info von DSC beibehalten: Ja
     OPI-Kommentare beibehalten: Nein
     Dokumentinfo von DSC beibehalten: Ja

ANDERE ----------------------------------------
     Distiller-Kern Version: 5000
     ZIP-Komprimierung verwenden: Ja
     Optimierungen deaktivieren: Nein
     Bildspeicher: 524288 Byte
     Farbbilder glätten: Nein
     Graustufenbilder glätten: Nein
     Bilder (< 257 Farben) in indizierten Farbraum konvertieren: Ja
     sRGB ICC-Profil: sRGB IEC61966-2.1

ENDE DES REPORTS ----------------------------------------

IMPRESSED GmbH
Bahrenfelder Chaussee 49
22761 Hamburg, Germany
Tel. +49 40 897189-0
Fax +49 40 897189-71
Email: info@impressed.de
Web: www.impressed.de

Adobe Acrobat Distiller 5.0.x Joboption Datei
<<
     /ColorSettingsFile ()
     /AntiAliasMonoImages false
     /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
     /ParseDSCComments true
     /DoThumbnails false
     /CompressPages true
     /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
     /MaxSubsetPct 100
     /EncodeColorImages true
     /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
     /Optimize false
     /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
     /EmitDSCWarnings false
     /CalGrayProfile (• L)
     /NeverEmbed [ ]
     /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.5
     /UsePrologue false
     /GrayImageDict << /QFactor 0.9 /Blend 1 /HSamples [ 2 1 1 2 ] /VSamples [ 2 1 1 2 ] >>
     /AutoFilterColorImages true
     /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
     /ColorImageDepth -1
     /PreserveOverprintSettings true
     /AutoRotatePages /None
     /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
     /EmbedAllFonts true
     /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
     /StartPage 1
     /AntiAliasColorImages false
     /CreateJobTicket true
     /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
     /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
     /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.5
     /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
     /DetectBlends true
     /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
     /PreserveEPSInfo true
     /GrayACSImageDict << /VSamples [ 1 1 1 1 ] /QFactor 0.4 /Blend 1 /HSamples [ 1 1 1 1 ] /ColorTransform 1 >>
     /ColorACSImageDict << /VSamples [ 1 1 1 1 ] /QFactor 0.4 /Blend 1 /HSamples [ 1 1 1 1 ] /ColorTransform 1 >>
     /PreserveCopyPage true
     /EncodeMonoImages true
     /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
     /PreserveOPIComments false
     /AntiAliasGrayImages false
     /GrayImageDepth -1
     /ColorImageResolution 200
     /EndPage -1
     /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
     /MonoImageDepth -1
     /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
     /EncodeGrayImages true
     /DownsampleGrayImages true
     /DownsampleMonoImages false
     /DownsampleColorImages true
     /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.5
     /MonoImageDict << /K -1 >>
     /Binding /Left
     /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated (SWOP) v2)
     /MonoImageResolution 600
     /AutoFilterGrayImages true
     /AlwaysEmbed [ ]
     /ImageMemory 524288
     /SubsetFonts false
     /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
     /OPM 1
     /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
     /GrayImageResolution 200
     /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
     /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
     /ColorImageDict << /QFactor 0.9 /Blend 1 /HSamples [ 2 1 1 2 ] /VSamples [ 2 1 1 2 ] >>
     /ASCII85EncodePages false
     /LockDistillerParams false
>> setdistillerparams
<<
     /PageSize [ 595.276 841.890 ]
     /HWResolution [ 600 600 ]
>> setpagedevice


GC(48)/COM.5/0R.1
21 September 2004, Page ii

Abbreviations used in this record:

TCF Technical Cooperation Fund



GC(48)/COM.5/0R.1
21 September 2004, Page 1

— Election of Vice-Chairmen and organization of work

1. The CHAIRMAN, having expressed appreciation for the confidence which the General
Conference had placed in him, said that, as provided for in Rule 46 of the Rules of Procedure and
following group consultations, it had been proposed that Ms. Stokes of Australia and Mr. Nemethy of
Slovakia should serve as Vice-Chairmen of the Committee. He took it that the Committee wished to
endorse their nominations.

2. It was so agreed.

3. The CHAIRMAN drew attention to document GC(48)/COM.5/1, which listed the agenda items
referred to the Committee of the Whole by the General Conference. He proposed that, in line with past
practice, he report orally on the Committee’s deliberations at a plenary meeting of the Conference. He
took it that the Committee wished the practice of clustering, to the extent practicable, the draft
resolutions recommended to the Conference by the Committee for adoption to be continued.

4. It was so agreed.

9. The Agency’s accounts for 2003
(GC(48)/9)

5. The CHAIRMAN, noting that no Committee members wished to take the floor, assumed that
the Committee wished to recommend to the General Conference that it adopt the draft resolution on
page I of document GC(48)/9.

6. It was so agreed.

10. The Agency’s budget for 2004 — supplementary appropriation
(GC(48)/16)

7. The CHAIRMAN informed the Committee that the Board had recommended to the Conference
a supplementary appropriation to the Regular Budget for 2004 to cover the Agency’s share of the
immediate budgetary requirements for new security enhancements at the Vienna International Centre,
and corresponding requirements for Agency regional, liaison and field offices and laboratory sites.

8. The Committee had before it document GC(48)/16, which contained in the Annex a draft
resolution recommended by the Board for adoption by the Conference.

9. Noting that no Committee members wished to take the floor, he assumed that the Committee
wished to recommend to the General Conference that it approve the supplementary appropriation to
the Regular Budget for 2004 set out in document GC(48)/16 and, accordingly, to adopt the draft
resolution contained in the Annex to that document.

10. It was so agreed.



GC(48)/COM.5/0R.1
21 September 2004, Page 2

11. The Agency’s budget for 2005
(GC(48)/2 and Mod.1)

11. The CHAIRMAN informed the Committee that: the Board had, at its June session,
recommended the adoption by the General Conference of the draft resolution entitled “A. Regular
Budget appropriations for 2005 in the Annex to document GC(48)/2; the Board had, the previous
week, recommended a figure for the Technical Cooperation Fund (TCF) target for 2005 and the
adoption of the draft resolution entitled “B. Technical Cooperation Fund allocation for 2005” in
document GC(48)/2/Mod.1; and the Board had in June also recommended that the Conference adopt
the draft resolution entitled “C. The Working Capital Fund in 2005” in the Annex to document
GC(48)/2.

12.  He drew the Committee’s attention to document GC(48)/INF/13, containing a specimen draft
resolution, produced solely for purposes of illustration, on the Regular Budget appropriations for 2005.

13.  Noting that no Committee members wished to take the floor, he assumed that the Committee
wished to recommend to the General Conference that it approve a total Regular Budget figure for 2005
of US $281 430 000 on the basis of an exchange rate of €0.9229 to $1.00 and, accordingly, that it
adopt the draft resolution entitled “A. Regular Budget appropriations for 2005 in the Annex to
document GC(48)/2.

14. It was so agreed.

15. The CHAIRMAN took it that the Committee wished to recommend to the General Conference
that it approve a target for voluntary contributions to the TCF for 2005 of $77 500 000 and,

accordingly, that it adopt the draft resolution entitled “B. Technical Cooperation Fund allocation
for 2005” in document GC(48)/2/Mod.1.

16. It was so agreed.

17.  The CHAIRMAN took it that the Committee wished to recommend to the General Conference
that the level of the Working Capital Fund in 2005 be maintained at its current level of $18 000 000
and, accordingly, that it adopt the draft resolution entitled “C. The Working Capital Fund in 2005” in
the Annex to document GC(48)/2.

18. It was so agreed.

12. Scale of assessment of members’ contributions towards the
Regular Budget
(GC(48)/10)

19. The representative of MEXICO said that there should be a thorough analysis of the scale of
assessments issue with a view to arriving at a fair distribution of the financial burden, without
significantly affecting Member States’ contributions. Her delegation would in due course make
specific proposals in the appropriate forum.



GC(48)/COM.5/0R.1
21 September 2004, Page 3

20. The CHAIRMAN, noting that no other Committee members wished to take the floor, assumed
that the Committee wished to recommend to the General Conference that it adopt the draft resolution
contained in document GC(48)/10.

21. It was so agreed.

15. Strengthening of the Agency’s technical cooperation activities
(GC(48)/INF/6 and Supplement; GC(48)/COM.5/L.1)

22.  The representative of PAKISTAN, introducing, on behalf of the Group of 77 and China, the
draft resolution contained in document GC(48)/COM.5/L.1, said that technical cooperation was of
great importance for developing Member States and expressed the hope that the draft resolution would
be recommended by the Committee to the General Conference for adoption.

23.  The representative of the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, referring to the last phrase (“based
on ... years”) in preambular paragraph (j) of the draft resolution, said that his delegation had
misgivings about the implied automatic linkage between the Regular Budget level and the TCF target.
He suggested the insertion, after paragraph (j), of a paragraph reading “Convinced, however, that the
TCF target should be set at a realistic level which Member States are able to pay, as for 2005-2006.

24. The representative of GERMANY expressed support for the suggestion made by the
representative of the United States of America.

25. The representative of INDIA pointed out that the words “from 2005 onwards ... years” in
preambular paragraph (j) had been taken from paragraph 8 of the ‘package proposal’ approved by the
Board in July 2003 (GOV/2003/48). The Indian delegation would like the draft resolution to remain as
it stood.

26. The representatives of CHINA, BRAZIL, the SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC and YEMEN
expressed support for the statement made by the representative of India.

27.  The representative of PAKISTAN, also expressing support for the statement, said that nothing
should be done to detract from the importance of technical cooperation financing.

28. The representative of EGYPT, likewise expressing support for the statement, said that
preambular paragraph (j) reflected the outcome of extensive negotiations which had covered not only
technical cooperation but also activities such as safeguards.

29. The representative of the ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF IRAN said that although the draft
resolution was not ideal, failing — inter alia — to reflect the concern that technical cooperation
activities could be used to serve political interests, his delegation would not like to see it changed, as
changing it would entail the reopening of issues on which agreement had been reached in 2003.

30. The representative of the UNITED KINGDOM said that, although preambular paragraph (j)
reflected the ‘package proposal’ agreed on in July 2003, the additional paragraph suggested by the
representative of the United States of America reflected the importance of taking into account the
ability of Member States to contribute to the TCF. Failing to take it into account would result in the
under-funding of technical cooperation activities.



GC(48)/COM.5/0R.1
21 September 2004, Page 4

31. The representative of PERU, expressing support for the statement made by the representative of
India, recalled that the words “from 2005 onwards ... years” had appeared in preambular paragraph (j)
of resolution GC(47)/RES/9 adopted in 2003.

32.  The representative of the NETHERLANDS said that his country, which had already pledged its
full share of the envisaged TCF target for 2005, was in favour of adequate funding being provided for
technical cooperation and suggested that “realistic” be replaced by “adequate” in the additional
paragraph proposed by the representative of the United States of America.

33. The CHAIRMAN proposed that further consideration of agenda item 15 be postponed.

34. It was so agreed.

16. Strengthening the Agency’s activities related to nuclear
science, technology and applications
(GC(48)/12; GC(48)/14; GC(48)/INF/4; GC(48)/COM.5/L.2;
GC(48)/COM.5/L.3)

35. The representative of PAKISTAN, introducing the draft resolution contained in document
GC(48)/COM.5/L.2, said that it was crucial to intensify the Pan African Tsetse and Trypanosomiasis
Eradication Campaign (PATTEC).

36. The representative of CANADA suggested that, in the interests of consistency with resolution
GC(46)/RES/11.D) adopted in 2002, the words “within available resources” be inserted at the end of
operative paragraph 3.

37. The DEPUTY DIRECTOR GENERAL FOR MANAGEMENT suggested that, also in the
interests of consistency with the resolution adopted in 2002, that the words “subject to the availability
of resources” be inserted at the end of operative paragraph 5.

38. The representatives of MOROCCO questioned whether the ability of the Director General to
report to the Board and the General Conference would be limited by a shortage of resources.

39.  The representative of PAKISTAN, having expressed support for the comment made by the
representative of Morocco, said that he was opposed to the suggestion made by the representative of
Canada. The magnitude of the tsetse fly problem called for unqualified support for PATTEC.

40. The representative of the NETHERLANDS, responding to the statement made by the
representative of Pakistan, said that in his view it was undesirable to express unqualified support for
one particular activity in the technical cooperation area, however important. Technical cooperation
involved many very deserving activities. His delegation therefore supported the suggestion to add
“within available resources” in operative paragraph 3.

41. The DEPUTY DIRECTOR GENERAL FOR MANAGEMENT said that the Secretariat did not
insist on the addition of “subject to the availability of resources” in operative paragraph 5 but
considered that operative paragraph 3 should be amended as suggested by the representative of
Canada.




GC(48)/COM.5/0R.1
21 September 2004, Page 5

42. The CHAIRMAN proposed, following a request by the representative of JAPAN for time in
order that her delegation might consult with the relevant authorities in Tokyo, that the Committee
postpone further consideration of the draft resolution contained in document GC(48)/COM.5/L.2.

43. It was so agreed.

44, The representative of PAKISTAN, introducing the draft resolution contained in document
GC(48)/COM.5/L.3, said that it was essentially an updated version of resolution GC(47)/RES/10.A
adopted in 2003.

45.  The representative of GERMANY, welcoming the report by the Director General contained in
document GC(48)/12, said that her country greatly appreciated the progress that had been made in
preserving and enhancing nuclear knowledge since the 2004 session of the General Conference and
hoped that further progress would be made, with a view to ensuring the future availability of the
qualified manpower needed for the safe and secure utilization of all nuclear technologies.

46. The CHAIRMAN took it that the Committee wished to recommend to the General Conference
that it adopt the draft resolution contained in document GC(48)/COM.5/L.3.

47. It was so agreed.

The meeting rose at 11.55 a.m.



